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Stratégid Report

Description of the business -

1G Markets Limited ("the Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Market Data Limited and its ultimate parent company
is 1G Group Holdings plc References to “the Group are to IG Group Holdings plc together with all its subsidiary

undertakings.

During the year, the Company offered OTC leveraged derivatives, stock trading and investments. The Company sold its
existing buslness relating to the provision of OTC leveraged derivatives and stock trading services to Australian and New
Zealand clients in Novembaer 2020, to |G Australla Pty Limited, a fellow Group company, and the transfer of clients relating
to the business was completed in phases. On 20 February 2022, the Company completed the migration of Its New Zealand
clients to'IG Australia Pty Limited, and on 24 April 2022, it transferred its Australian stock trading clisnts to G Australia
Pty Limited. The Company has surendered its ragulatory ficense in New Zealand as at 31 May 2022 and |s in the process
of surrendering its regulatory license in Australia.

The Company is the counterparty to the OTC leveraged derivatives that clients enter into and is the primary hedging
counterparty for other Group companies, and as a result the Company faces market risk. The Company accepts this
market risk in arder to. aflow instant execution of dient orders. The Company manages the market risk it faces through
intemalisation ~ allowing individual client trades to offset against each other — and by hedging the residual risk in each
market at defined limits by entering into derivative contracts with its hedging brokers. The Company seeks to hedge its
residual market exposures in an efficient manner by grouping its exposures into asset classes, and therefore does not
hedge its exposures exactly, which gives rise to basis risk. Through the process of intemalisation and hedging, the
Company limits the market risk it faces so that its trading revenue from OTC leveraged derivatives predominantly reflects
the amounts paid by clients through spread, commission and funding, fess the costs incurred in hedging and less amounts
paid to other Group companies under revenue share agreements.

Clients are required to have sufficient funds in their account to cover the margin to enter into a derivative contract. Margin
is usually expressed as a percentage of the notional value of the trade and allows a client to use leverage to take a position
in a market with a notional value that Is in excess of the funds they are required to deposit. Leveraged derivative contracts
magnify the gains or.losses a client can make relative to the funds deposited and the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). Until 31 December 2021, the Company was subject
to CRD IV regulations and complied with the overall capital adequacy requirement set out by the FCA's IFPRU handbook.
From 1 January 2022, the Company is subject to the Investment Firm Prudential Regime (IFPR) and complies with the
overall capital and liquidity requirements set out under the requirements of the MiFIDRU. The Company surrendered its
license with the Financial Markets Authority (FMA) of New Zealand on 3 May 2022. The Company continues to be
regulated by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC), for the provision of regulated services to
Australian dients, The Company is in the process of applying for a cancellation of the license with the ASIC as clients in
Australia have been completely migrated to another Gréup company as at 31 May 2022. .

The Company's trading revenue arises from each of the Company’s three revenue generating models; OTC 4leveraged
‘derivatives, stock trading and investments.

.

OTC leveraged derlvatives: represents
i) amounts paid by clients for spread, commission and funding charges in respect of the opening, holding and
closing of contracts for difference contracts together with gains and losses for the Company arising on client

trading activity; less
i) fees paid by the Company in spread, commissions and funding charges ansmg in respect of hedglng the risk
- associated with the cllent trading activity and the Company’s currency exposures, together with gains and losses

incurred by the Company arising on hedging activity; less
iil) amounts pald to other Group compantes under revenue share agreements in relation to hedging activities.

Stock trading: represents fees and mmmlsslon eamed from the stock trading service as well as income derived from’
foreign exchange conversion.

Investments: represents management fees, which are earned as 3 percentage of assets under management.

The Company’s main costs are:
o Remuneration costs: relates to employees who are directly employed by the Company or through another Group
company.
e  Advertising and markeling costs: are Incurred to drive client recruitment, Advertising and marketing incdlude costs
which have been shared with another Group company under a cost sharing arrangement.

»  Royalty expense: relates to fees paid to another Group company for the use of technology. The fee is calculated
as a percentage of the Company's net trading revenue.
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Strategic Report

Performance of the business during the.year ehqed 31 May 2022 (FY22)
The Company continued to make good strategic and operational progress during the year.

IG's business model ensures that its interests as a business are aligned with the interests of Its cllents, which sets it apart
from most other.companies in the industry. The Company believes that its culture of acting in clients’ best interests,
providing excallent client service, offering risk management tools, education and training resources, its innovative platform, *
and the quality of trade execution, are key differentiators. This creates a sustalnable business, with strong client tenure
and client value metrics.

The Directors have approved the sale of the stock trading and investments business to a fellow Group company, |G
Trading and Investments Limited. The sale Is expected to be completed during FY23, and the profits have been separated
from the Company's continuing operations for the year and are shown as discontinued operations. Further details are
provided in note 23 of the financlal statemants.

The Company had net trading revenue in FY22 of £453.6 million (FY21: £465.0 milllon). Operating costs In FY22 were
£221.5 million (FY21: £230.2 million), and profit before tax for FY22 was £231.4 million (FY21: £234.1 million).

Profit for the financial year was £188.2 million (FY21: £189.2 million). Shareholders’ equity decreased from £412.5 million
as at 31 May 2021 to £396.7 million as at 31 May 2022, following the payment of £200.0 milliion of dividends to its
shareholder (year ended 31 May 2021: £200.0 miltion).

The Diractors of the Group manage the Group's operations on a geographical and pottfolio basis. The Company s
Directors belleve that further analysis using key performance indicators for the Company is not necessary or appropriate
for an understanding of the development, performance or position of the Company. The key performance indicators of the
Group, which includes the Company, are set out in the Group Annual Report.

The Company continues to actively monitor and refine its comprehensive business continuity plan which was successfully
implemented at the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic during the 2020 financial year. The Group’s significant long-term
investment in communications and technology Infrastructure has enabled.the Group to transition to a hybrid working
environment, with-all employees given the opportunity to work safely from home, and IG continues to provide the best
possible service for Its clients when they choose to trade the financial markets.

The confilctin Ukraine has had minimal impact on the commercial operations of the Company and steps were taken in the
early stages to minimise any exposure to sanctions on clients and suppliers. Additional employee support has been
provided to employees based in Poland, who support the Groups global operations, to ensure their continued health and
wellbelng

Asat31 May 2022, under FCA rules, the Company S surplus regulatory capital above the regulatory minimum was £101.5°
million under the new |FPR regulations compared to £212.6 million under the CRD IV regulations as-at 31 May 2021. Total
regulatory capital resources as at 31 May 2022 were £261.7 million (FY24: £410.1 million). The Company had significant
surplus regulatory capltal resources over the regulatory capital resources requirement throughout the year.

In accordance with the MiFIDPRU prudential regulations, the Company is required to disclose a retum on equity metric:
This has been calculated as profit for the financial year divided by shareholders’ equity at year end.

31 May 2022 31 May 2021
Return on equity C : 47.4% 45.9%

Engaging with our stakeholders
Section 172(1) staternent by the Board

The Board continues to uphold the highest standards of conduct and to make decisions for the long-term success of the
business. The Board recognises that the Company can only grow and prosper If we understand and respect the views and
needs of our stakeholders.

The Company Is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of IG Group Holdings plc and oberates in line with the strategies and
policies that are set by the IG Group Holdings plc Board and are described in the IG Group Holdings plc Annual Report
The following statement should therefore.be read in conjunction with the |G Group Holdings plc Annual Report.

Under the Companies Act 2006, the Directors must act in a way that they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. in doing this, the Directors must take into
account, among other factors:

¢ - Thelikely consequences of any dacision in the long term

o Théinterests of the Company’s employees ‘ . ~
»  The need ta foster our business relationships with ‘suppliefs.l customers and others
e The ihpad of our operations on the community and the environment B

e The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high s.tandards of business conduct

e The need to act fairly between members of thg Company.
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Our key stakeholders

The Directors have identified cartain key stakeholders who are essentnal to the siccass of the Company. These are
outlined In the section below on stakeholder engagement The Board will sometimes engage directly with certain
stakeholders on spedific issues. This stakeholder engagement often takes place at an operational level, ensuring that we
consider key stakeholders when we discuss and make decisions. These decisions include strategic matters, finandal and
operational performance, risk management, and legal and regulatory compliance. Information in relation to these areas Is

-provided to the Board through reports sent in advance of each Board meeting, and through presentations to the Board.

Employeses - .

The Board believes that having the right strategy and support In place for the Company’s employees is crucial to our
success as our people are at the heart of how we achleve our strategic vision. Having effective sngagement in place with
the Company’s émployees anables us to create a positive, rewarding aqd inclusive workplace for all. .

Long-term decision making

IG's strategy is to sustainably generate and preserve value for stakeholders and wider society over the long term by
facilitating a wider range of trading and investment opportunities for ambitious people around the world. This long-term
view drives the annual review of strategy undertaken by the Board and the setting of objectives for employees working
within IG. The Board's risk management procedures [dentify the potential consequences of decisions being made in the
short, medium and long term so that appropriate levels of identification, mitigation, reduction or elimination of risk can be
considered and taken in the best interasts of the Group and stakeholders.

Methods used by the Board to fulfil its Section 172(1) duties
The Board sets the Company's purpose, values, and strategy, and carefully ensures that it is aligned appropriately with

' stakeholder interests, whilst also taking the Company’s culture into consideration.

Conslderation of key stakeholders Is an integral part of all declslon-making by the Board and every paper presented to the

"'Board clearly sets out the impact on any stakeholders for whom it is relevant. This analysis assists the Directors In

performing thelr duties under Section 172(1) of the Companles Act 2006, and further, the Board recelves extemal
chalienge and assurance on this, together with reports from brokers and advisors. Directors receive spedific training
including tailored induction processes for new Directors together with an ongoing programme of training on strategic, legal
and regulatory devalopments retevant to the Company's activities. The Directors: are able to comply with their legal dutles
under Ssction 172 of the Companies Act 2008 (CA20086). '

Board declslon-makingand stakeholder considerations . .

The Company is fully committed to effectively engaging with all key stakeholders Below are some examples of how the
Directors have taken into account the matters set out in Sections 172(1){a) «f) of CA2006. when discharging their Section
172 duties, and how this has affected certain prineipal decisions taken by them. We define 'principal decisions’ as those

. that are material to the Company and are significant to any one or more of our key stakeholder groups.

In rhaklng the following prlndpavl declsion, the Board constdered the outcome from our stakeholder engagemenl.-ae well
as the need to maintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct and the need to act falrly between the

Company's stakeholders. .
Principal decision: Transfer of the stock trading and investments business to IG Trading and Investments Limited

The Board approved the plan to transfer the stock trading and investments business to |G Trading and Investments
Limited, a fellow Group company. .

In agreeing the plan, the Board considered the potenhal impact that it might have on its key stakeholders. In particular, the

‘Board took into account

‘e. Our relationship with and the views of the FCA, our regulator In the UK. We held ongoing dialogue with the FCA
and informed !hem of each step of the plan to transfer the business.

¢ The interests of employees The Peopie Forum provides a helpfut feedback channet to hear lhe views of
_employees, so we can address matters raised. .

¢ The needs of clients, as clients have been duly Informed of the plan to transfer the business and were provided
the opportunity to share any concerns or object to their accounts being transferred ’

s Our existing relationships with suppllers, in particular, the financial msmuuons that act as custodians -to our
clients’ assets. Adequate communications were provided to the relevant suppliers to assist in the execution of
the plan. .

e  The views and Interests of the shareholders, by ensuring that the transfer of the business does nat hinder the
growth of the Company, including any future strategic inltiatives.
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Stakeholder engagément
Clients _
Why we engage with our clfents

IG exists to power the pursuit of financial freedom for the ambitious. Our clients have high expectations of us. if we.fail to
meet those, our clients will go elsewhere. There are many companies operating in our industry, ahd we need to engage
with our clients to ensure that we continue to stay ahead of the competition. .

Our clients use our trading platforms for hours every day, and that makes them the most vatuable source of feedback for
us - helping us to provide the best experience we can.

How we engage with our clients

We angage with our clients through our multilingual, highly trained customer support teams’ avallable 6.5 days a week,
365 days a year. Our gaal Is to offer best-in-class customer service to all our clients and provide various channels for them
to get in touch with us. Qur platform provides a range of tools and features to help clients, mcludmg educational resources,
breaking financial news and live analysis of the markets. These are availabie for all clients to use in the way that best suits
them. We conduct regular research to obtain our clients’ feadback on our products and services. This helps us to manage
thelr expectations, shape our prioritisation roadmaps and improve our programmes.

What matters most to aur clients v

Reliability of technology: we strive to provide a stable, secure and reliable platform, so that trade execuﬁon is seamless
and our clients benefit from market opportunities.

"Education: we offer a range of educational tools and materials, alongside demo accounts where clients can leam about
our leveraged products in a risk-free environment. We also offer a range of risk management solutions that our cliants
value as part of their educational joumey.

Support service: to ensure that our cllents are able to trade around the clock’, we provide 24-hour trading coverage which
Is uniqué In the market and a key feature of our proposition. Clients aiso expeci us to be there when they need assistance.
have an issue, or simply want to ask a question. Acoess to 1G's highly tralned customar service'team Is important for
clients who rely on our expertise.

People

Why we engage wf!h our peopla

Nurturing a team of talented and dedicated people is central to our strategy, enabling us to dellver the exceptional products
and services that keep us at the forefront of our industry.

How we engage with our people

We have_a varisty of means to engage with our people. These Include surveys, the abillity to collect feedback and
commaents at any time using our employes communication portal, and town halls and small group meetings that allow our
senior managers to meet ‘and understand our people’s views. Our employee network groups also offer an important
channel to better understand the experience of our employees who are currently underrepresented. Our People Forum, a
body that acts as a conduit for more formal feedback and interactions with our Board, brings employee vaices into Board
dscision-making. The People Forum is chaired by our Group’s Chief Operating Officer, supported by the Group’s Chief
People Officer, and attended by a Non-Executive Director on a rolling basis. Employee representatives are democratically
elected by our people and serve two-year terms.

What matters most to our people

-It's vital that our people are kept informed about our business strategy and changes to the indiJstry. They want and deserve
the chance to be involved in planning changes that will impact.them and their teams, and also expect the organisation to
provlde opportunities for development.

Regulators

Why we engage with our regulators '

Regulations affect how the Company markets and provides services to clients. It is essentiat that the Company engages
with its regulators to ensure they understand our products and business model, so we can remain active in multiple regions
and keep growing into new markets.

By maintalning relationships with its key regulators and engaging on both a local and global scale we position ourselves
to be welldnformed about impending developments in the regulatory environment.

How we engage with our regulators

The Company maintains constructive relationships with its regulators, communicating in an open and transparent manner,
and ensuring that its actions are consistent with regulatory expectations.

We work with regulators in muitiple ways — from pnoactlve engagement on new buslness proposals to asslsﬂng in their
investigations and regutatory requests. ‘ ’

Around the world the Company maintains ‘an open and constructive dialogus wuth local regulators, to facilitate strong
relationships and understand the expeclations that are critical to the Company.
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- What matters most to our regulators
Regulators focus on ensuring firms safeguard their clients’ bast interests and ensuring that all ctients are treated fairly.
They also take an interest in capital and liquidity issues. Regulators value firms that respect and follow both the letter and
the spirit of the regulations and guidelines they set out.

Communities

Why we engage with commun/ﬂes

Sustamabmty and soclal awareness are firmly embedded into our purpose and values and are integral components, of the
.Company's culture. Community engagement is vital to our ability to deliver long-term retums for our stakeholders. These
factors mean that we carefully consider our impact on the communities in which we operate and on the environment.

How we engags with communities

Through the Brighter Future framework, the Company partners with local charities that support the communmes in which
it operates. We also have partnerships at national and global levels.

The Company's people have opportunities to engage with its parntners ~ from.our Group Chief Executive Officer's
membership of Teach First's Business Leaders Council through to employes volunteering and fundraising. We have a
dedicated ESG Manager and a team of reglonal champions spread across our global network that lead on our community

outreach initiatives.
- What matters most to our communitles

Community impact: our communities value sustained and long-term support. This is achleved through a combination of
continual dialogue, financlal donations and meaningful employee engagement. To date, through our Brighter Future Fund
and other related Inltiatives, we have committed over £5 million to our charity partners and to important causes and
campaigns. It also matters to our communitles that we're conscious of our impact on the environment.

Suppliers

Why we engege with suppliers )

The Company engages with suppliers to develop mutually beneficial and laslihg partnerships. Suppliers play an important
role in the quality of the service the Company provides, supporting the Company to meat the high expsctations of its
sophisticated client base. -

Working in collaboration with our suppliers is aléo crudal to the success of our ESG strategy.

How we engage with suppliers . . .
The Company frequently engages with its supplier base to ensure that all. parties are getting the desired vaiue from the
relationship. Typlcally we do this through a serles of engagements, ranging from informal conversations for exchanging
Information and discussing priorities to formal Interactions.

What matters most to our suppliers

The Company has found that our suppliers value clarity on our expectations of the mlatlonshlp and the services they
provide, along with timely and refiable payment. The Company's suppl(ers also appnecuate fair, open and honest two-way
commuirilcation and value the feedback the Company can glve them.

Regulatlon +

IG is the world's leading provider of CFDs and adheres to the highest regulatory standards. The Company's primary
regutator is the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), but is also regulated in other jurisdictions it operates in. The FCA
introduced the U.K Investment Firm Prudential Regime {IFPR) with effect from 1 January 2022, which are the new
prudential riles the Company is subject to. This primarily impacts on the liquidity and capital requirements of the Company,
as well as tha regulatory reparting and disclosures, remuneration, supervision, and governance of the Company in the UK.
The liquidity and capital requirements are d:scloseq in note 27 on capital management.

»
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Princlpal risks and uncertalntias .

The Company operates as a business within the Group, ‘and the succéss of its business is dependent upon the
performance of other Group companies. The principal nsks faced by the Company are outlined below:

e Regulatory environment risk: The-risk that lhe Company faces enhanced regulatory scrutiny with a higher
chance of regulatory action, ‘or the risk that the regulatory environment in the jurisdiction in which the Company
cumrently operates, or may wish to operate, changes in a way that has an adverse effect on the Company's
business or operations, through reduction in revenue, increases in costs, or increases in capital and liquidity

. requirements. This also includes the risk of a change in the way the Company is taxed, such as the risk of a
change in the financial transactions tax rules which could severely impact the economics of the trading activities
of thé Company; . :

- o Commerclal risk: The risk that the Company’s performance is affected by adverse market conditions, failbre to
adopt an effective business strategy or competitars offering more attractive products or services;

* Business model risk: The risk faced by the Company arising from the nature of Its business and its business
-model. This includes tha market risks related to the products it offers, the liquidity risks faced in conducting its
business, the risk of holding insufficient capital to cover its exposures and the credlt risk of the clients, the,
financial institutions and Group campanies it transacts with;

e Conduct and operational risk: The risk that the Company's conduct poses to the achlevement of fair outcomes )
for consumers or the financial markets. The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or extemal events. This also Includes the risk of loss resulting from the failed processes, people
and systems of the Group companies that the Company relies on in executing its operations. .

1 The principal risks faced by the Company are broadly in line with the risks faced by the Group, and the Directors of the
Group manage the risks faced by Group companies on a Group wide basis. Details of the Group's approach to risk
. management and principal rlsks facing the Group, are set out in the Group Annual Report

Future Developments

The Directors have approved the sale of the stock trading and mvestments business of the Company to IG Tradlng and
Investments Limited. This safe is expected to be completed in the first half of FY23.

On behalf phthe Board »

CRozes - -
Director : .
22 July 2022
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Directors’ Report

' The Directors present thelr Report together with the audited Fnanaal Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
May 2022,

Directors
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the date of s:gnlng the Financial Statements were
as follows:

J Felix

J Noble

C Rozes

R Bhasin -

A Didham

S Hibberd

M Le May

R McTighe

J Moulds

S Skerritt (appointed 09 July 2021)

H Stevenson

G Wu

B Messer (resigned 22 September 2021)

L Pollina {resigned 09 July 2021)

The Company purchases appropdate llabliity Insurance for all Directors and officers. This cost was bome by another Group
company. ,

The Directors of the Company held shares in the ultimate parent Company as disclosed in the Group Annual Report.

" Business

The descnptnon of the business undertaken by the Company, its performance during the year, its position at the end of the
year, and future developments are set out in the Strategic Report on page 2.

The Company is reglstered In Australia and New Zealand for the purpose of offering products to clients in these
Jurisdictions, however, the Company has ceased the provision of these services priar to 31 May 2022. The Company has
a branch in Poland which provides back office, marketing and sales support. The Company has inactive branches In
Germany, France, ltaly, Spaln, Sweden, Irelarid, Norway, Netherlands, a non-trading branch in South Africa as wellasa .

reprasentative office in China.

Divldends

The Directors are not recommending a final dividand.
Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR)

The Company Is exempt from the requirement to report under the SECR regulations on a standalone basis.. The
Company's energy, carbon and business travsl consumpuon is included within the Group's reporting which Is disclosed

|n the Group Annual Report. -

Durectors statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this report Is aware, there Is no relevant audit
information, belng information needed by the auditors in connection with preparing their report, of which the auditors are
unaware. Each Director has taken all the steps that she or he is obliged to take as a Director in order to make herself of
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreated In accordance with the provisions of sectlon 418 of the Companies
Act 20086.

Financial Risk Managemerit.

Financial isk management lnfonnallon is presented in note 27."
Subsequent events ' '

Subsequent events are presented In note 28.
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Additional disclosures

The Company Is required to publish additional Information In accordarice with the UK Investment Firm Regiie (MIFIDPRU)
and the Capltal Requlrements (Country-by-Country Reportmg) Regulaﬁons 2013 Thls Informatlon will be publlshed atthe
- following web address: hitp: ; finve: )

On behalf of lhe Board

" CRozes
Director
22 July 2022 .

(-
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statemenls In accordance with appllwble
law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each finandial year. Under that law the Directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework®, and a;()pl'mb!e law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the pmﬂt or loss of the company for that period. In preparing the
financial statements, the directors are required to: i

« select-suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« state whether applicable United ngdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explalned In the fnandial statements;
» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
+ prepare the financial statements on the golng concem basis unless itis inappropriate to presume that the company
© wilt contlnua in business.

<

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and henca for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors are also responslble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

On behalf of the Board

o] Ftozw
Director
22 July 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of |G Markets Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

4 Opinion’ o '

In our opinion, IG Markets Limited's financial statements:

» give & true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 May 2022 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

¢ have been properly prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United_
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financlal Statements (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the statement of financial position as ‘at 31 May 2022; the income statement, statement of-
comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the finandal
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
QOur responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the- Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
stataments section of our report. We balleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained |ndependent of the company in accordance with the ethical requlrements that are relevant to our audit of the
“financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilitles In accordance wlth these requlreman\s

Concluslons relatlng to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may-cast sngmﬁcant doubt on the company’s abllity to continue as @ going concem for a
period of at least twelve months from wheén the financial statements are authorised for issue.

_ln audmng the ﬁnanclal statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of aocountmg
. inthe pneparatuon ‘of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
company'’s ability to continue'as a going concem.

: . Our responsnbllmes and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
. " sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Arnual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audn opinion or, except lo the extent otherwise
explicitly siated in this report, any form of assurance lhereon

in connecﬂon with aur audit of the financial statements, our responsnb:lity is to read the other lnformaﬁon and, in'doing so,
consider whether. the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there Is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
bassd on thesa responsibilities. ’ . .

© With respect to the Strategic repart and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been |ncluded

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 feqmtes us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.
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.IG Markets Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of IG Markets Limited

Strateglc rebort and Directors’ Report

In our oplinlon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Information given in the Strateglc report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 May 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understandmg of the company and its environment obtained In the course of the audit, we.
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

Responsiblliﬂes for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financlal statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financlal statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such intemal control as they detemmine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. . .

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ébllnty to continue as a
going concarn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basls 6f accounting
unless the directors éither intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemalive but to do

So.

Auditors’ responsibllities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financla!l statements as a whole are free from
materlal misstatement, whelhar due to fraud or error, and to Issus an auditors’ report that includes our oplnion. Reasonable’
assurance is a high leve! of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emror and are considered
material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably-be expected.to Influence the economic dedisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. .

Irregulantles including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We des:gh procedures in llf\e
-with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, induding fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capabla of detecting iregularities, including fraud, is detalled below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to Financial Conduct Authority and applicable tax legislations, and we considered the extent
to which nen-compliance might have a material effact on the financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (Including the risk of override of controls); and
determined that the principal risks were rélated to inappropriate recording of journals. Audit procedures performed by the

engagement team included:

e Enquiries of management, intemal audit, and those charged with govemance In refation to known or suspected
Instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

¢ Identifying and testing joumal entries and period end adjustments, including those posted by senior management or
with unusual account combinations;

» Review of correspondence with regulators, and intemal audit reports in-so far as they are related to the ﬁnanclal
statements, . .

¢ Review of whistieblowing reports; and

e Incomporated unpredictability into the nature, timing and/or extent of our testing.

There are Inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected In the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a matarial misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from emor, as fraud may invoive deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through cofllusion.

A further descriptlon of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's wabsite at:
- www.frc.org. ul/auditarsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this raport

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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lnde'p’endent‘Auditors’. Report
to the members of IG Markets Limited

Other required reporting

Companias Act 2006 exception reporting ] A 4
Under Ihe Compénles Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

v e we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for.our audit; or ‘
" o adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
. received from branches not visited by us; or
e certaln disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by faw are not made; or
o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums. .

We have no exceptions to repoi't adsln_g from this responsibility. '

Canl Stzer (Senior Statutory Auditor) .
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP -
Charte(ed Accountants and Stetutory Auditors
London ’

25 July 2022
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- Income Statement
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Year ended 31 May 2022 - ' Year ended 31 May 2021

. ' (Restated)'

‘ Continuing - Discontinued = Total. VCVontlnuing'_ Discontinued Total
operations operations . operations operations :
Note £m . Em £m _Em £m Em
Trading revenus 429.3 - 27.0 456.3 © 4338 A 339 467.7
Introducing partner ’ ‘ oL ”n , : .
commissions 4 (2.7). 27 (2.7 .7
Net trading 3 4266 210 4536 4311 339 465.0
revenue i - .
Financlal trensaction : . . .
o non.. (0.1) . : (0.1) (0.1? . 1
Interest income on . .
L segregated client . 0.3 0.3 . 0.8 0.8
funds .
Other operating 2.7 . 2.7 3.5 . 35
income : i X . ) i ‘ ]
Net operating - 4295 . 27.0 4565 4353 33.9 4692
income . ) :
‘Operating costs - 4”037 (178 (2215  (2123) - (17.9) (2302)
Net credit (losses) / g : L , : o
gains on financial 27 0.2 0z . ©.7) ©.7)
assets e ‘ . . - :

. Operating profit .226.0 9.2 235.2 222.3 16.0 238.3
Finance Income 8 . 108 - 108 17 - 17
Finance costs 9 (14.6) - (146) (5.9) oo- (5.9)
Profit before ' 222 92 2314 218.1 160  234.1
taxation , hat. :

Taxation L0 M8 () (432) (41.9) (3.0)  (449)
Profit for the 1807 75 1882 1762 L 130%: 1892

financlal year /

The Fy21 conparm have been restated 10 includa the resuits of discontinued operat Iating to the stock ¥ading and ivestments busifiess. Refer to notg
23 for further dotafs. : ’ o




) __IG Mgrket_s Limited

e —
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 May 2022
Yeay ended 31 May 2022 Year ended 31 May 2021 (Reétated)‘ ‘
% Continuing  Discontinued Total  Continuing Discontinued Total
operations operations * ° operations operations '

" fm  Em £m £m Em £m
Profit for the year ' . 180.7 75 1882 176.2 " 130 - 189.2
Other comprehensive ' '
(expense)income:
Items that may be subsequently . , . . . . .
reclassified to the Income
Statement:
Changes in the fair value of
finandial assets held at fair- ‘ :
value through other (4.0) - (4.0) (1.3) - - (1.3)
comprehensive income, net of
tax ‘
Other comprehensive (4.0) - (4.0) (1.3) - - (1.3)
(expense)/income for the year ' . -
Total comprehansiva income 176.7 75 1842 1749 130 1879

. for the year

The FY21 comparalives have been restated to inchuda the rasults of discontinued operations relating to the stock u'adlng and Invéalménw business. Refer to nata 23 for

further details.

15



- IG Markets Limited :
Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 May 2022 o

31 May 2022 31 May 2021

. Note £m £m
Assets ' )
Non-current assets . '

Property, plant and equipment 11 0.2 - 06
) Investment in subsidiaries ' 12 38 3.8
) Financlal investments o A 16 134.8 127.6
Other receivables . o 15’ 181.7 . -
Financial assets pledged as collateral 16 25.3 . 614
Deferred income tax assets ‘ ) ) 10 . 0.3 . 0.4
: 3461 1935
Current asssts ] !
Trade receivables : N .13 361.8 . 4235
Other assets : o 14 14.2 © 303
Prepayments . ) ‘ 1.3 " 15
Other receivables 5 . 66 196
Cash and cash equivalents - - ' ‘ ‘ 860.7. - 402.7
Financial investments ) 16 2008 127.4
‘Financial assets pledged as collateral ' 16 35.1 26.0
T : E 1,520.6 1,031.0
TOTAL ASSETS ' . ' 1,866.7 1,224.5
Liabiities ' ‘ '
Non-current liabilities’
Borrowings: : 17 . - 98.8
Other payables ) 19 - 2983 ¢ -
. Deferred income tax liabiities ' 10 8 0.9 0.3
' 209.2 99.1 i
Current liabllitles L : '
Trade payables ' ‘ 18 138.2 69.8
Other payables - ‘ 19 1,029.3 640.7
Income tax payable ’ . : ' 33 22
Lease liabilities : 24 - 0.2
K 7 ’ © 11708 . 7129
Total liabilitles - ) ) ' 1,470.0 812.0
_ Equity . ‘
‘Share capital i 21 ' 130 . 13.0
Other reserves . ) . 22 (4.2) ’ (0.2)
Retained eamings o . ' 3879 3997
Total equity T 396.7 4125
. TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ’ 1,866.7 " 01,2245
‘The Finang?al Stat_ements on-pages 14 to 52 were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by:

ozes
Director A . .
22 July 2022 ) ..
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|G Markets Limited -

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 May 2022

Share

Other Retained - Total
capital .reserves’ earnings equity
- £m , Em £m £m
At1 Juﬁe 2020 13.0 16 410.0 424.6
Profit for the financlal year , - - 189.2 189.2
Other comprehensive expense for the N R
year . (1.3) (1.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (1.3) 189.2 187.9
Equity dividends paid - - (200.0) (200.0)
Transfer of vested awards from the R (0.5) 05 .
share-based payment reserve : ) .
At 31 May 2021 ‘ 13.0 (0.2) 390.7 412.5
Profit for the financial year . . 188.2 11882
Other comprehensive expense for the . ta B
year ' | (4.0) (4.0).
Total comprehensive income for the year - (4.0) 188.2 184.2
Equity dividends paid - - (200.0) (200.0)
At 31 May 2022 13.0 (4.2) 387.9 396.7,

External Communication - Disclose with care
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IG Markets Limited ' . .

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Authorisation of Financial Statements and statement of comphance with FRS 101

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 May 2022 were authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 July 2022 and the Statement of Financial Position was signed on behalf of the Board by Charles Rozes.
The Company is incorporated and domiclied in'England and Wales with registered company number 4008957 as a
private company limited by shares. The address of the registered office is Cannon Bridge House, 25 Dowgate Hill,
London, England EC4R 2YA. .

Accounting policies
Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and ;udgements that affect the
amounts reported for assets and iiabllities as at the year-end, and the amounts reported for revenue and expenses

during the year. .
The nature of estimates means that actual outcomes could differ from those gstimates. There are no critical accounting
estimates, and no accounting judgements that had a significant impact on the presentation or measurement of items
recorded in the financial statements.

Basis of proparatlon

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance wnh Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101). The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention,
as modified by derivative and non—deﬂvative ﬁnanclal assets and liabilities measured at fair value, and in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006.

The following disclosure exemptions from the requirenients of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these
financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101: _

IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows';

IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment’ paragraph 45(b) and 46 to 52.

IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ ' paragraph 17;

IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ requirements to disclose transactions between wholly-owned Group

companies,;

IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors' paragraphs 30 and 31;

¢ |AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' paragraph 38 to present comparative information in respect of IAS
1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraph 79 (a)(iv), 1AS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ paragraph
73(e), and IAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’ paragraph 118(e); . '

« |AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' paragraphs 10(d),10(f), 16, 38A-D, 111 and 40A-D

« |IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a),
114, 115, 118, 119(a) to (c), 120 to 127 and 129;

s |FRS 16 'Leases’ paragraph 52

s & o o

Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the Group Annual Report.

The accounting policies and Interpretations adopted In the preparation of the Financial Statements are consistent with
those followed In the preparation of the Company’s Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31 May 2021

New accounting standards and Interpretations - standards and amendments adopted during the year

There were no new standards, amendmaents or interpretations issued during the perlod which have had a material
impact on the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been
issued but Is not yet effective. The IASB has published a number of minor amendments to IFRSs that are effective from
1 January 2022 and 1 January 2023. ’ .

These include amendments published to IAS 12 — Income Taxes, IAS 37 ~ Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. The Company is in process of assessing the Impact of these amendments. There have also been
amendments published to IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements. However, the Company expeots they will have
an Insignificant effect, when adopted, on-the Financial Statements of the Company.

Going concemn

The Directors have prepared the Financial Statements on a going concem basls which requires the Directors to have
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue In operational existence, for a period
of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financlal Statements.

In assessing whether it is appropriate to adopt the going-concem basis in preparing the Financial Statements, the
Directors have considered the resilience of the Company, taking account of its liquidity position and cash generation,
the adequacy of capital resources, the avallability of funding from its parent company and the Group, and stress-testing
of liquidity 'and capital adequacy that takes into account the principal risks faced by the business.

The Directors’ assessment has considered future performance, solvency and liquidity over a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of the Financlal Statements. The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies {continued)
Going concern {continued) -

Company has adequate resourcas for that period, and confirm that they consider it appropriate to adopt the going-

concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.

Parent company and Group Financial Statements

The parent company throughout the y.ear was Market Data Limited which is a wholly owned subsidiary of IG Group
Limited. The ultimate parent company is |G Group Holdings plc. .

The Flnancial Statements of IG Group Holdings pic and its subsidiary companies, which include the results of the
Company, are publicly available and may be obtained from Cannon Bridge House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London EC4R
2YA. Therefore, the company Is exempt by virtue of section 400 of the Companies Act 2006, from the requirement to
prepare consolldated financial statements. These financial statements are therefore separate financial statements.

Foreign currancies

The Company’s functional and presentational cumency Is Sterling, and this is consistent with the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates in. Transactlons in other currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency by applying spot exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
dsnominated in foreign currencies are revalued at the Caompany's functional currency rate of exthange prevailing at
the Statement of Financial Position date. Gains and losses arising on revaluation are recognised in trading revenue in
the income Statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carred at falr value and denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. .

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s overseas operations are translated into Sterhng at exchange rates prevailing

- on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arlsing from the translation’ of overseas operations are -recognised in ‘other comprehensive
income' and the ‘translation reserve'. On disposal of an overseas operation, exchange differences previously
recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ are recycted to the income statement as income or expense.

Revenue recognition .
Trading revenue includes revenue arising from each of the Company's three revenue generation models: OTC
leveraged derivatives, stock trading, and investments.

OTC leveraged derivatives ,
Revenue from the OTC leveraged derivatives business represents:

i) fees paid by dllents for spread, commission and funding charges In respect of the opening, holdlng and
closing of contracts for difference together with gains and losses for the Company arising on client trading
activity; less

i) fees paid by the Company in spread, commissions and fundlng charges arising in respect of hedging the
risk associated with the client trading activity and the Company’s currency exposures, together with gains
and lasses Incurred by the Company arising on hedging activity; less

iii) amounts paid 'to other Group companies under revenue share agreements.

Open client and hedgling positiohs are fair valued daily with-gains and losses arising on this valuation recognised In
revenue. The policles and methodologies assaoclated with the determination of fair value are disclosed in note 26 :
Financial {nstruments.

Stock trading

Revenue from stook'tra‘ding represents fees and commission eamed from the stock trading services. Revenue is
recognised in full on the date of the trade being placed or the fee being charged. :

Investments’

Revenue from investments represents management fees, which are earned as a percentage of assets under
management. These are recognised over the period in which the service Is provided.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company and can be reliably measured. Revenue is shown net of sales taxes.

Trading revenue is reported before introducing partner commission and financial transaction taxes, which are dlsclosed
as an expense in amiving at net operating income.

. Net trading revenue, disclosed on the face of the Income Statement and in lhe Notes to the Financial Statements,
represents trading- revenue after adjusting for introducing partner' commission, as this is consistent with the .
management information received by the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Aécounﬁng policies (continuad).

Finance income and expenses on client funds

Interest income and expense on segregated client funds, held with third parties is accrued using the effective interest
rate, and by reference to the amortised cost of the amount outstanding, and are mctuded in operating profit as this is
consrstem with the nature of the Company’s operations.

Interest income and interest expense on firm cash and client funds held with I1G are dlsclosed within ‘finance i lncome
and ‘finance cost' . : ,

Dividends

Dividend deg:lared but not yet distributed loAthe Compény's shareholder are recognised as a liability in the Company's
Financial Statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's Directors. .

Dividend income Is recognised when the shareholder’s right to recelve the payment is established.
Employee beneﬁu : .

-(a) Pension obligations
The Company operates defined contribution schemes. Contributions are charged to the Income Statement when they
become payable according to the rules' of the schemes. Once the contributions have been paid, the Company has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further oontrlbu!lops.

{b) Bonus schemes

The Company recognises an accrual and an expense for bonuses-based on formulae that takes Into conslderation
specific financial and non-financlal measures. Liabilities for the Group's cash-settled portion of the Sustained
Performance Plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense over lhe relevant service period and remeasured
at each balance sheet date until setllement

(c) Termination benefits

" Termination benefits are payable when an employment contract is terminated by the Company. The Company
recognises termination benefits when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits.

Expenses are either Incurred directly by the Company or by other Group companies on the Company's behalf. Where
costs are incurred on'its behalf, these costs are recharged to the Company on a line-by-line basls '

. Leases

The Company leases office spaces. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset wl(h"a corresponding lease Iiabilily
from the date at which the asset is available for use.

Leasing arrangements can contain both lease and non-lease companents, The Company has elected to separate out
the non-lease component and to account for these based on thelr relative stand-alone prices. Lease terms are
negotlated on an Individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased

assets may not be used as security for bomwing purposes.

The leases liability Is initially measured as the.net present value of the following payments:

Fixed payments less any lease Incentives; ‘

Variable lease payments dependent on an index or rate inltially measured as at the commencement date;
Amounts payable by the Company under residual guarantees; and :

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease. . .

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit [n the leass. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
. the Company's estimated increméntatl. secured borrowing rate is used. This represents the cost to borrow funds to
abtain a similar valued right-of-use asset in a similar economic environiment with similar terms and conditions.

The company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease-payments based on an Index or rate, which .
are not included in the lease liability unti! they take effect When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or

rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. Lease payments are

allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost Is charged to profit or loss ‘over the lease period so as

to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remalning batance of the liability for each period.
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“Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022 . .

2, " Accounting pollcles (conllnued)
Leases (continued)

- Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising:

Lease liability at initial recognition;

Any lease payments mads at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
. Any initial direct costs; and

Restoration costs.

s o o o

Right-of-use ‘assets are depreciated over the duraiion of the lease term.

. Lease payments for low value assets or with a period of 12 months. or less are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense.

Taxatlon
The income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxabte profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates in the
respective jurisdictions that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date.

Deferred tax is accounted for on all temporary differences between the camying amount of asséts and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the comresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. In principle, deferred
tax liabillties are recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis
probable that taxable profits will be available, against which deductible temporery differences may be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not récognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a
business oombmaﬁon) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arlslng on investments in subsidiaries and
assoclates, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not revarse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each Statement of Financlal Position date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered

Deferred tex assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted

at the Statement of Financial Position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement, except when
it refates to Items credited or charged directly to equity or Other Comprehensive Income, In which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity or Other Comprehensive Income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income iaxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabllities on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid, and the fair value of any other consideration glven to acqulre the asset
and Includes costs directly attributable to maklng the assst capable of operating as intended. .

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated
residual value based upon estimated useful lives. Estimated resldual value and useful lives are reviewed annually and
residual values are based on prices prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position date. Depreciation is charged on
a straight-line basls over the expected useful lives as follows: .

' Leasehold improvements ) - over the lease term of up to 15 years
. Office equipment, fixtures and fitings - over 5 years

+  Computer and other equipment - over2, 3or5years

. Right of use asset - over the lease term of up to 15 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The canrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
-clreumstances indicate the camying value may not be recoverable and are written down immediately ta thelr recoverable

amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dlsposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is Immedlately recognised in the Income

Statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

When impairment testing is required, the Directors review the carrying amounts of the Company's property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such Indication exIsts, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated (o determine the extent of the Impairment loss (If any). Where the asset does not
generate cash flows thal are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. .

The recoverable amount is' the higher of fair value less selling costs and value in uss. In-assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their présent values using a pre-tax discount rate. This rate reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money as well as the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have nol been adjusted

if the recoverable amount of an assetis esllmated to be less than its carrying amount, the camrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense inimediately.

An assessment is made at each Statement of Financlal Position date as to whether there is any indication that
praviously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount Is estimated and previously recognised impairment losses are reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impaiment loss was
recognised. If that is the case the canrying amount of the assel is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been dstermined, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the assst in prior ysars. A reversal of an Impalirment loss Is recognised as income immediately, .

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidlaries are stated at cost less accumulated |mpa|rment losses.
Financial instruments

" Financial instruments - classification, recognition and measurement °

The Company determines the classification of Its financlal instruments at initial recognition in accordance with the
categories outlined below and re-evaluates this designation at each year-end. When financial instruments are
recognised inltially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus ar minus, in the case of financial
assets and firianclal liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs Financial
instruments are disclosed in note 26 of the Financial Statements.

{a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels and liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss are financial assets and liabllities that are

-not classified and measured at amortised cost or as fair value through other comprehensive income. The financial
assets included in this classificatlon are the financlal denivative open positions included in trade receivables (due from
brokers) as shown in the Statement of Financial Positian and related notes. The Company uses derivative financial
instruments, in order to hedge derivative exposures arising from open client positions, which are also classifled as fair
value through profit and loss.

All financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value
with gains or losses recognised in trading revenue in the Income Statement.

(b) Financial assats measured at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are non-derivative financlal assets which are held to collect the contractual
cash flows. The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to payments on specifled dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classifled as non-current assets. The

‘ Company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other receivables’, ‘cash and
cash equivalents' and fixed term deposits that are categorised under ‘financial investments'.

Fixed term deposits do not meet the criteria of 'cash and cash equivalents’ under IAS 7 as they hava a maturity of longer
than three months. Furthermore, the Group is unable to withdraw these deposits before their respective maturity date.
Therefore, these are categorised as ‘financial investments’ as stated above. .
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
{b) Financlal assets measured at amortised cost {continued)

Interest on term deposits Is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is either the rate that exactly discounts estimatsd future cash payments or recaipts through the expeacted life of the
financial instrument. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering ‘all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider expected credit losses unless the asset is credit
impaired. The ealculation includes all fees and spreads paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs; and al! other premlums or discounts.,

(c) Financlal assets measured at fair value through other oomprehenslve income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are assets that are held to collect the
contractual cash flows or to be sold. The contractual terms of these assets give rise to payments on specified dates
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. They are included in non-cument
assets unlass the investment matures or management intend to dispose of them within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. The Company's fair value through other comprehensive income financial assets are ‘financial
investments and ‘financial assets pledged as collateral’ other than fixed term deposits.

{d) Financial liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and lease liabllitles. These are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, excluding the derivative element of 'trade payables
- amounts due to brokers’, which is measured at fair value through profit or loss and recognised as part of trade
payables as detailed in (a). The interest expense is calculated at each reporting period by applying the effective interest
rate, and the resulting charge is reflected in finance costs on the Income Statement.

(e) Determination of fair value

Financial instruments arising from open client positions, financial derivative open positions included in trade receivables
(due from brokers), ‘financial investments' (other than fixed term deposits) and ‘financial'assets pledged as collateral’
are stated at fair value and disclosed according to the valuation hlerarchy required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.
Fair values are predominantly determined by reference to third party market values (bid prices for long positions and
offer prices for short positions) as detailed below:

4 Level 1: valued using imadjusted quoted prices In active markets for identical finandial instruments.

«  Level 2: valued using techniques where a price Is derived based signlficantly on observable market data. For
example, where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Company
to its clients or used by the Company to hedge its market risk does not exist.

. » Leve! 3: valued using techniques that moorporate information other than-observable market data that is
significant to the overall valuation.

Financlal instruments - Impalrment of financlal assets’

The impairment charge In the Income Statement includes a loss allowancs reflecting the change in expected credit
losses. Expected credit losses are recognised for ‘trade receivables’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’, ‘other receivables',
‘financial investments' and ‘financial assets pledged as collateral’. Expected credit losses are calculated as the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company and the cash flows that the Company
expects to recalve given the probabliity of default and loss given default, discounted at the orginal effective interest
rate.

At initial recognition of financial assets, an allowance is made for expected credit losses resulting from default events
that are possible within the next 12 months, except for where the simplified approach Is used where an allowance is
made for the lifetime expected credit loss. in the event of a significant increase in credit risk, an allowance Is made for
expected credit losses resuiting from possible default events over the expected life of the financial esset. The Company
applies the simplified approach for trade receivables and other receivables where the revenue associated with these
receivables is recognised in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers. The Company applies
the general approach for all other financial assets.

Financial assats that have not experiencad a signlificant increase in credit risk are categorised as Stage 1 and 12 month
expected credit losses ara recognised; financlal assets which are considered to have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition are considered to be Stage 2; and financial assets which have defaulted or are'
otherwise considered to be credlt impaired are allocated to Stage 3. .

An assessment of whether credlt risk has increased significantly considers changes In the credit rating associated with
the asset, whether contractual payments are more. than 30 days past due and other reasonable Information
demopstrating a significant increase in credit risk. In accordance with the Group's internal credit risk management
definition, financial instruments have a low credit risk when it has an external credit rating of ‘investment grade’. If no
external credit rating is available reference is made to the Group's internal credit risk palicy.
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Accounting policies (continued) '
Flnanclal Instruments - Impairment of financlat assets (continued)

Assels are lransférred to Stage 3 when an event of default, as defined in the Group's credit risk management policy,
occurs or where the assets are credit impaired. The Company determings that a default occurs when a payment is 90
days past due for all assets, except for receivables from clients where it uses 120 days This is aligned with the Group s
risk management practices.

Al changes in expected credit Josses subseduem to the assets’ initial recognition are recognised as an impaimment loss’
or gain. Financial assets are written off, either partially or in full, against the related allowance when the Company has
- no reasonable expectations of recovery of the asset. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writlen off decrease
the amount of impaiment losses recorded. in the Income Statement.

?
‘Derecognition of financlal assets and liabllities
A financial asset or liability is generally derecogmsed when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold cancelled
or expired. . -

\

(a) Financial assets

A financial asset is dereoogmsed where the rights to recaive cash flows from the asset have expired; the Company
retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in fult without material
delay fo a third party under a ‘pass-through” arangement; or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either () has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) has neither
transferred nor retairied substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor,

" retalned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred contro! of the asset, the assst Is recognised

to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a

..guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
 maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. -

_(b) Financial labllities . :

A financial liability is derecognised when the obllgalion under the liabllity is dlscharged or cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financlal liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the temms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derscognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, such that the drfference in the respective carrying amounts together
with any costs or fees incurred are recognised i i profit or loss.

(c) Offsetting financial instruments

" Assets or liabilities resulting from profit or.losses on open positions are carried at falr value. Amounts dué from or to

cllents and brokers are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there Is a legally enforceabls
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assst and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the nommal course of business and In the evenl of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or

the counterparty. ]
" Trade payables and recelvables

Trade recelvables represent balances with counterparues and clients where the combination of cash held on account
and the valuation of financial derivative open positions result in an amount due to the Company. Trade recsivables
balances also include commissions and required deposits due from the Company’s broker counterparties.

Trade payables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on account and
the valuation of finandial derivative open positions results in an amount payable by the Company.

" For trade receivables under IFRS 15 that do not contain a signiﬁcant financing element and 50 the Company has

appiled the srmplrﬁed approach for measuring impairment. For all other trade receivables, the general approach has
been applied for measuring impairment. The expected lifeime credit loss is recognised at initial recognition of the
financlal asset, with the loss allowance calculated by reference to an aging debt profile, adjusted for forward looking -
information. Trade recsivables are written off when there Is objective evidence of non-collectability or when an everrt

of default occurs.
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IG Markets Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Accoun(mg policies (contmued) . \
Financlal investments ’

Financial investments other than term deposits,”are held as fair value through other comprehensive income and are
non-derivative financial assets. Financial investments are recognised on a trade date basis. They are initially
recognised-at fair value plus directly related transactions oosbs They are subsequenﬂy wrrled at faif value- the quoted
market price of the specific investments held.

Unrealised gains or losses, other than loss allowances for expected credit losses for investments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), are reported in equity (in the fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve) and in other comprehensive Income, until such Investments are sold, collected or

otherwise disposed of. - . . ,

On disposal of an investment, the accumulated unrealised gain or loss included in equity is recycled to the income
Statement for the period and reported in other Income. Gains and losses on disposal are determined using the fair
value of the investment at the date of derecognition. Interest on financial investments is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is either the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or recelpts through the expected life of the financiat instrument, or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective intecest rate; the Company

_estimates cash fiows conslidering all contractual terms of the finandial instrument but does not consider expected credit

losseas unless the asset is credit impaired. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an intagral part of the effactive mteresl rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or

discounts. !

Other payables

Non-trading financial Ilabdltles are recognised initially at fair value and camied at amomsed cost usmg the effective
Interest rate methad.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

Borrowings -

" Borrowings are recognised Initially at falr value and subsequently at amortised cost, usmg 'the effective: interest rate .

method with any difference between net proceeds ‘and the redemption value bsing recognised in the Income Statement
over the period of the borrowings.

Share Capital

(a) Classiflcation of shares as debt or equity

When shares are issued,.any component that creates a financial liability of the Company Is presented as a liability on
the balance sheet; measured initially at fair value net of transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost until

. extinguished on conversion or redemption. Dividends paid are charged as an interest expense in the Income Statement,

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity
Instruments .are classified according to the substance of the contractual arangements entered into. An equity
Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its

liabilities.
{b) Share-based paymenté

The ultimate parent company, |G Group Holdings pic operates four employee share plans: a share incentive plan, a
sustained performance plan, a medium-term incentive plan and a Iong-term incentive plan. Some employees of the
Company are participents in some of these schemes.. .

For market-based vesting conditions, the cost of these awards is measured at fair value calculated using option pricing
models (fefer to the share based payment note in the Group Annual Report for additional detall of the models and

. assumptions used for the varlous award schemes) and are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement on a

straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the Company's estimate of the number of shares that will eventually
vest.

For non-market based vesting conditions, at each Statement of Financlal Position date before vesting, the cumulative
expense is calculated representing the extéent to which the vesting period has explred and management's best estimate
of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions determining the number of equity instruments that wil
ulimately vest. The movement in cumulative expense since the previous Statement of Financial Position date is
recognised in the Income Statement as-part of operating expenses, with a corresponding credit to equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

"Accounting policles (continued)
{b) Share-based payments (contmuad)

The grant by IG Group Holdings pic of optlons over its equlty Instruments to employees aof the Company is treated as
an expense for the Company, as discussed above and with a corresponding credit to equity. Upon vestmg. the share- .
based payments reserve in equity is transfemred to retained eamings.

Discontinued operattons o
A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been-disposed of and that represents a separate
line of business or geographlcal area of operatlons; Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of

. business or geographical area of operations; oris a subsldiary acquired excluslvaly with a view to resale. The results
of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Income Statement.

Where a discontinued operation has been disposed of for consideration greater than the value of the net assets and *
liabllities disposed of at the Statement of Financiat Position date, the Company recognises the excess consideration in
the Income Statement. The excess consideration is recognised when it Is probable the economic benefits associated
with the transaction wlll flow to the Campany.

Net trading revenue
An analysis of the Company's net trading revenue is as follows: .
Year ended Year ended

31 May 2022 31 May 2021
) £m . £m’
OTC leveraged derivatives . : 427.2 426.3
Stock trading and ifvestments ’ " 264 387
' 453.6 465.0
The Geographical breakdown of the Company's net trading revenue is as follows;
Year ended Year ended
31 May 2022 31 May 2021 .
. £m £m
UK . . 453.0 461.8
Australta ' o - 06 32
i 4536 465.0
Opserating costs
‘ Year ended Year ended
31 May 2022 -31 May 2021
. ) £m £m
Employee related expenses ) ' ' 57.1 - 56.6
Royalty expense . . i 104.4 107.0
Advertising and marketing ’ : 145 " 16.5
Pramises related costs . . 37 3.0
IT, Market Data and Communications ‘ 172 : 17.4
Legal and professional costs . : . 42 - 42,
. Regulatory fees . _ . 4.7 46
Depreclation . ‘ ] 0.4 04
Other costs S ’ 15.3 205

2215 230.2
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Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees in relation to the statutory audlt of the Financial Statements of the Company amounted to £96,175 (31 May
2021: £74,500). .

Audit related fees in relation to services supplied pursuant to leglslatwn amounted to £158,958 (FY21: £240, 020). Audit
related fees include engagements that are required by the regulatory aulhoritles In whose jurisdiction the Company
oparatas, as well as other assurance services.

Directors” remunaration and Directors' shareholdings .
Directors are remunerated for their services to the Group. The Dlrectors remuneration for their services to the Company
for the year was £nll (FY21: £nil).

The Directors of the Company held shares In the ultmate. parent Company. The Directors remuneratlon and
shareholdings are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration section Group Annual Report. :

N

Staff costs

Staff costs relate to employees who are directly employed by the Company and to employees employed by another
Group company, where the cost is recharged to the Company. The avarage. monthly number of employees directly
employed by the Company was 153 (FY21: 129).

The average monthly numbe} of employees, spllt into the key activity areas was as follows:

"Year ended Year ended
31 May 2022 31 May 2021
Business administration . : : 84 67
Operations . ‘ ' v ) 59 " 53
Prospect acquisition . '
Sa|§s and client management , 4 5
Technology _ ' ‘ ; 1 .
. - 183 ' 129
An‘analysis of staff costs before.and after these recharges is shown betow: )
' Year ended Year ended *
31 May 2022 31 May 2021
£m £m -
Wages, sataries and benefit dllov}ances 4.2 35
Equity-settied share-based payment awards and related soclal 04 ) .
security costs o . R
Performantce related bonus and related social secunty casts 0.6 . 0.6
Total staff costs for employees of the Company 49 .4
' Cost.s recharged to the Company_ from other Group companies for o 52.2 . 52.5
- services provided to the Company

Amount recognised in the Company’s income Statement 571 - '56.6
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7.. Staff costs (continued) i
The staff costs for the yeai’ were as follows:

) . Year ended Year ended
. ‘ 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
£m . £m

- Wages and salarles, performance related bonus and equlty-settled ’ . 483 480 '

share-based payment awards ) . . ’

Social security costs i o : 8.3 6.1
Other pension costs ] ' 25 25
’ 571 ' 56.6

The Company does not aperate any defined benefit pens«on schemes. Other pension costs mclude employee
nominated payments to defined contribution schemes and company oontnbuuons

8. ° Financeincome : ’ . ) P .

. . : Year ended: Year:ended
31 May 2022 31 May 2021
£m . £m
Interest receivable from other Group companies : A 8.7 . i
) Bank interest receivable ’ : . ) 0.8 .02
'Interest receivable on cash hetd at brokers 0.6 0.6
Intersst accretion on financial Investments 04 - os

Interest receivable on money market funds ‘ 03 - ) o
10.8 17

9. Finance costs - oL |

' : ) Year ended - Year ended
. ) . 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
' o ’ ' £m £m
Interest payable to other Group companies ) . ’ 6.2 ' 0.8

" Term loan interest and fees . ’ Co 38 2.6.
Revolving credit facility interest and fees _ . 16 0.5
N Interest payable to brokers ’ o : : 27 ’ 1.6
‘Bank interast payable - : ) 06 ‘ 0.4
' 146 59

Y
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Taxation -

. Tax charged/(credited) in the-Income Statement:

Current ln'coma tax:

UK Corporation-tax

"Non-UK Corporation tax
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current Income tax

Deferred [hcore tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences.
Adjustments in respect of prior years .

Total deferred Income tax ..

Tax expense in the Income Statement
" Tax not charged to th;a income Statement
" Tax recognlised in other comprehensive income
Tax recognised directly in equity (current and deferred)
Tax exponko ettributabls to:
Profits from continuing operations
Profits from discontinued operations

Reconcillation of the total tax charge

Year ended Year ended
31 May 2022 31 May 2021
- £fm £m
429 43.8
. 0.2
(0.1) 11
B 428 45.2
0.3 . 05
0.1 (0.7)
0.4 {0.2)
43.2 449
0.5 -
(0.5) .
s 419
1.7 3.0

‘The standard rate of corporation tax In the UK for the year ended 31 May 2022 was 19.0% (year ended 31 May 2021:
19.0%). Taxation outslde the UK is calculated at the rates prevalling in the relevant iudsducﬂons The tax expense in

the lncome Statement for the year can be reconciled as set out below:

Profit before taxation ’

Profit before taxation multiplied by the UK standard rate of
corporation tax of 19.0% (year ended 31 May 2021: 19.0%)

- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
faxabie gain arising on transfer of Australian business
Ad]uspnénts in respect of prior years,
Group relief for which no payment is made )
Total tax expense reported in the Income Statement

The effective tax rate is 18.7% (year ended 31 May 2021: 19.2%).

Year ended .Year ended
. 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
£m £m
2314 234.1
44.0 4.5
0.7 1.0
- . 03"
- 0.4
(1.5) (1.3)
43:2 44.9
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Taxation {continued)
Defgrred Incoma tax assets

The deferrad Income lax assets included in the S!ntemen! of Financial Position are. ss follows:

. . - Yearended ' Year ended

. 31 May 2022 31 May 2021

) : ) £m £m
Other temporary differences ' o ‘ - 0.4
' i ’ - . . 04

The movement_' in the deferred income tax assets included in the Statement of Financial Position Is as follows:

Year ended Year ended .
31 May 2022 31 May 2021
e ‘ £m £m
At Ihelbeglnnlng of the year ’ - 04 0.2
- Income Statement credit/(charge) ' (0.4) 0.2

At the end of the year - - 0.4

Deferred income tax liabilities : . i
The defarred Income tax liabilities included in the Statement of Finandial Position are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

oo 31 May 2022 31 May 2021

. * fm . _ im

Other temporary differences . ) (0.8) - (0.3)
’ o8 ©03)

The movement in the deferred income tax liabilities includéd In the Statement of Financlal Position is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 May 2022 31 May 2021

. . Em . £m

At the beginning of the year : (0.3 (0.3)
- Reclassification from deferred tax asset to deferred tax liability ' - - -

- Tax charged to other comprehensive income 0.5) . -

~ Atthe end of the year : S @8 (03

The Finance Act 2021 passed Into legisiation in May 2021 and increased lhe mam rate of UK eorporauon tax from 19%
to 25% effective from 1 April 2023. The impact of these changes on deferred tax have been assessed and deferred tax
assets and liabilittes have been measured at the-tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset is realised
of liability settled.

Factors affocting the tax g:ha;ga in future years-

Factors that may affect the Company's future tax charge Include the UK tax rate, changes in tax legistation and the
resolution of open tax issues. The Company’s future tax charge may also be impacted by changes in the Company's
business activities, client composition and regulatory status, which would impact the Company's exemption from the
UK Bank Corporation Tax Surcharge. . 3

The calculation of the Companys total tax charge involves.a degree of sﬂinaﬂon and judgement with respect to the
recognition of deferred tax assets, which are dependent on the Company’s estimation.of future profitable income and
of certain items whose tax lraatment cannot be finally determined until resolution. has been reached with tha relevant
tax authority. .
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IG Markets Limited -

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 May 2022

1. Prbpeny',.planl and equipment

Cost:
At 1 June 2020
Additions

- Disposals

At 31 May 2021
Additions
Disposals

At 31 May 2022

Accumulated depreclation:
At 1 June 2020 '

‘Provided during the year
. Amounts derecognised on disposal

At 31 May 2021

Provided during the yéar '
Amounts derecognised on disposal
At 31 May 2022 '

Net book value - 31 May 2022
Net book value - 31 May 2021

Office c
equipment, Computer, >
fixtures and and other Right-of-use
fitings equipment asset Total
£m £m. £m £m
0.1 .05 15 21
B 0.1 . - 0.1
- - 0.5 (0.5)
0.1 0.6 1.0 1.7
0.1 0.6 1.0 17
- 0.4 05 0.9
0.1 - 03 0.4
- - (0.2) (0.2)
- 0.1 0.4 0.6 .14
- - 0.4 .04
0.1 0.4 1.0 15
- 0.2 - 0.2
- 02 04

0.6
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12, Investment In subsidiaries

At cost less accumulated impairment losses: 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
) ) ’ ] £m ‘ £m
At beginning and end of the year A 8 . 38

The Direclors consider the carrying amount of the Company S Investments in subsldiaries to be supported by the net
assets of its subsidiaries. . .

The following companies are all owned directly or indirectly by IG Markets Limited:

Proportion. s
_ Registered office and of voting Nature of
Name of company . . ___country of moorporatlon . Holding ghﬁts held business
Subsldiary undenaklngs held directly: .
Cannon Bridge House, o ) o
. 25 Dowgate Hill, London Ordinary . : Finance
IG Finance 9 Umﬂed EC4R 2YA, United shares 100% company

Kingdom

Subsidlary undertakings held indirectly: .
9 Battery Road, 01-02 CFD trading

N o . Ordinary N
IG Asla Pte Uimited MYP shares 100% and foreign

Centre, 048910 Sindapore ___exchange
13. Trade recelvables ,
31 May 2022 31 May 2021
. . ) £m . fm
Amounts dus from brokers ‘ . . 340 0 3942
Own funds in cllent money ' . . ) - 268 27.9
.Amounts due from clients o 10 T 14
‘ - 3618 . 4235

4
®

Amounts due from brokers represent balances with brokers where the combination of cash held on account and the
valuation of financial derivative open positions results in an amount due to the Company.

Own funds in client money represents the.Company's own cash held in segregated client funds, in accordance with
client money and asset rules of regulators in whose jurisdiction the Company operates and Includes £0.3 milllon (31
May 2021: £2.1 million) to be transferred to the Company on the following business day. . ’

Amounts due from clients arise when a dient's total funds held with the Company are insufficient to cover any trading
losses incurred or when a client utilises a trading credit limit. This Is stated net of an allowance for Impalrment Refer
to note 26 for further detalls.




14,

18,

IG Markets Limited

AY

Notes to the Financial' Statements

-for the year ended 31 May 2022

Other assets
Other assets are cryptowrrencles and rights to cryptocunencxes which are owned and controlled by the Company for
the purpose of hedging the Company’s exposure to clients’ cryptocumency trading positions. The Company holds rights
to cryptocurrencies on exchanga and in vaults as follows:

31 May 2022 31 May 202.1
£m . £m
E‘x_change‘ ) ] B 1.8 13.8
Vads R 124 _ 16.5
' ' 142 303
Other assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell. Other assets akre level 2 assels n accordance with the fair
. valye hierarchy (note 27). -
Qther raceivables
' A 31May2022 31 May 2021
£m - £m
Non-current:
Amounts due from Group companlss )
- Market Data Limited ' e .
Current: . ] _
 Other debtors ' ' . ' 10 1.0
Amounts.due from Group companies - )
-1G Ausiralia Pty Limited 19.8 -
- IG Intemational Limited ’ 13.2 2.0
- 1G Asia Pte Limited ' . 44 .-
_-1G Europe GmbH _ : T 35 -
< Market Data Limited ' . 145
.- Other Group companies R 4.7 2,0
o ' ' 466 19.6

228.3 19.6

The Co}npény advanced a loan with a' principal value of $300 million to Market Data Limited in July. 2021. "The loan’

‘bears a fixed Interest rate of 4.5% annually and matures In 5 years from the date the loan was advanced The loan has

been classified as non-current for the year ended 31 May 2022.

All other amounts due from Group oompanies are unsecured non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022 .

16. Financial invastmants and financial assats pledged as collateral

31 May 2022 31 May.2021
. £m . £m

UK Govemment securities . : 3511 3421 .
" Term deposits _ . : 45.0 - - -
' ' 3961 342.1

Sptit as: . . )

- Non-curmrent portion . ’ 160.1 188.7
Cuentportion 2360 153.4
3961 342.1

Of the UK Govemment securitles, £289.9 mililon (31 May 2021: £256.0 milllon) is held at brokers to satlsfy margin
requirements. The remalning balancs is held to meet regulatory liquidity requiremenits.

17. Borrowings

In June 2021, the Company drew down an an additional £150m term loan fauhly to assist the Group In its financing of
the acquisition of wstytrade Inc. Refer to the Group Annual repart for futher Informaﬁon relating to the tastytrade Inc
acquisition.

in November 2021, the Group performed a debt refinancing exercise and implementation of a long-temm funding
structure, as a result of this, the Company repaid and cancelled lts existing £125.0 million revolving credit facilities and
7£250.0 million term loan facilittes. The Company therefore has no other.obligation in relation to extémal credit facilities,
lncludlng compliance with financial covenants as at 31 May 2022. The Company complled will aII financial covenants
prior to this refinancing and during the year ended 31 May 2021.

18. Trade payables

31 May 2022 31 May 2021.

£m . £m

- Client funds’ ‘ ' 102.8 69.3
Amounts due to brokers : ' 27.8 -

 Amounts due to clients A « 74 02

Other trade payables : : o 02 0.3

1382 69.8

. Client funds reflects the Gmups ‘liabitity for funds which are recognised In cash and cash equivalents as a result of
: dlents entering into Title Transfer Collateral Amangements.

Amounts due to clients represent balancas that wjll be transferred from the Company s own cash into segregated dlent
funds on the following business day in accordance with the UK’s Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) 'CASS' ruleg and -~
simitar rules of other regulators in whose Jurisdiction the Company operates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

)
Other payables
31 May2022 31 May 2021 -
e e
Non-current:
Amounts due to Group companies
- IG Group Holdings pic ' C o 2083 -
Current:
Accruals 9.6 11.9
Amounts due to Group companies ' ’
-1G Group Holdings plc ' : 370.3 205.5
" -1G Index Limited ‘ : 361.7 262.4
- IG Knowhow Limited : 87.9 . 554
- Market Data Limited 66.3 o -
- IG Europe GmbH o 69.4 V 46.9
- IG Securities Limited ‘ 360 20.6
- IG Limited ‘ ' . o 9.6 , 6.4
2 1G Bank S.A. ‘ . ~ 985 o197
- Other Group companles . : 9.0 11.9-
o 1,029.3 - 640.7
13276 - 640.7

.

The Company was advanced a loan with a princlpal value of £298.3 million from IG Group Ho!dlngs ple in November
2021. The loan bears a fixed interest of 3.1% annually and matures in 7 years from the date the loan was advanced.
The amount has been dassified as a non-current liability for the year ended 31 May 2022.

Under the Gmups cash management framework entities holding cash that is surplus to short term requirements
advance the monsy 016 Markets Limited. The amount payable to |G Securiies Limited bears interest and Is repayable
on demarnd. All othar amounts are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. Amounts due to regulated
entities represent balances where the combination of cash held on account and the valuation’ of financial derivative
open posltions arising from Intragroup hedging arrangements results in an amount due from the Company.

Contingant tiabilitles and provisions '

- There.are no contingent liabilities expected to have a material adverse financial impact on the Company’s Finandal

Statements. The Company had no material provisions at 31 May 2022 (31 May 2021: £nil).

Share capital
31 May 2022 31 May 2021.
- Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid: - ’ .
13,000,000 (FY21: 13,000,000) oridinary shares of £1 each 130 13.0
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Other reserves
" Share-based . Total other
_payments FVOC| reserves
) : £m £m £m
At 1 June 2020 ‘ ‘ ' 04 1.2 1.6
;I'er:\;f:r of vested awards from the share-based payment . (0.5) ) (. 5)
Change In the fair value of financial assets held at fair value . (1.3) (1.3)
through other comprehensivg income, net of tax : R . . . i
At 31 May 2021 . " (0.1) 0.1y - (0.2)
Change in the fair value of ﬁnandal assets held at fair value : . (4.0) N (4.0)
through other comprahensive incoms, net of tax . . ) AT
At 31 May 2022 S (0.1) G ) I (4.2)

The share-based paymant reserve relates to the estimated cost of equity-settled employee share plans net of tax based
on'a stralght-line basis over the vesting period. The fair value through other comprehensive income reserve (FVOCI)
includes unrealised gains or losses in respect of ﬁnanda! Investments, netof tax. - .

Discontinued oparations

In November 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with a fellow Group company, IG Australia Pty Umnted to
cease marketing OTC leveraged derivatives and stock trading services and to transfer Its existing business relating to
Australian and New Zealand clients for nominal consideration of £1. The Company previously received sales and
marketing services from |G Australia Pty Limlted to support its Australian and New Zealand business. This agreement:
was terminated and replaced by an agreement for the Company to provide hedging and incidental services to IG
Australia Pty Limited, whereby the Company continues to recelve trading flow from the Group’s Australian and New
Zeatand clients. The transfer of clients occurred in stages and was completed on 24 April 2022. This was also reported
as a discontinued operation in the year ended 31 May 2021,

The stock tradtng and investments business, of the Company has been classified as a discontinued operation as at 31
May 2022, as itis & major line of business and the sale to a fellow Group company, IG Trading and Investments Limited,
is consldered highly probable given that the Directors have approved the sale for nominal consideration of £1, As a
result, its profits have been separated from the Company’s continuing operatiens for the year and are shown as
discontinued operations. The comparative period has been restated accordingly. There are no assets on the balance
sheet of the Company refating to the stock trading and investments business. The transfer of the business is due to be
completed In the first half of FY23.
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24, Leasa llabllities

The Company has leases which are capitalised as fixed assets. The movements in balances can be reconciled as

follows:
' 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
Right-of-uge asset : . £m . £m
Lease asset recognised at the beginning of the year ' ) " 04 : 1.0
Amounts derecognised on disposal : . : : - {0.3)
Depreciation in the year . ' . v (0.4) (6.3} )
. ’ - 0.4
. : i 31 May 2022 31 May 2021°
“Lease llabllity ' . ' - £m gim
Lease liabliity recognised at the beginning of the year A : 0.2 0.9
Amounts derecognised on disposal . - (0.4
Payments made in the year ) . ' 0.2) ) (0.3)
- 0.2

The Company has no lease liability as at 31 May 2022. The Company has £0.1 million lease commitments under
non-canicellable operating leases at 31 May 2022 which are not capitalised as right-of-use assets (31 May 2021: £0.0

mﬂilon).
" Discounted leasoe liability A 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
Futire minimum pay;nents due: - o S ' Em . . £m
Within one year ) - ' 0.2
After one year but not more thari five years . o - -
' - 0.2
Undiscounted lease liability 31 May 2022 31 May 2021
Future minimum payments due: S £m £m
Within one year ° _ ' ' o= 0.2
¢ - -After one year but not more than five years » - -

- 0.2
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Employee share plans

. The ultimate parent oompany operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and a Medlum-Term Incentive. Plan (MTlP)

which are both equnty-settled The disclosures below relate to employees employed directly by the Company. )

- Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Awards under the LTIP are nominal cost options which vest aﬂer three years, conditional upon tontinued employmenl
at the vesting date. There are no performance targets. .

The exercise pr!ce of all outstanding options awarded under the LTIP at 31 May 2022 is 0.005p and the weighted
average remalning contractual life Is 1.11 years

Share price at Expected vesting At the.end of the

Av:'ard date award date .- year
’ Number
. -- ’ ' '
06-Aug-19 - . 559.2p | 06-Aug-22 6,158
06-Aug-20 ‘ ) '734.0p _06-Aug-23 5,696
05-Aug-21 - ’ i 911.5p 05-Aug-24 4,923
__Total ) ) ) 16,777

The weighted average exercise price of all LTIP awards is 0.005p.

Medium Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
Awards under the MTIP are nominal cost options, which vest after 15 months, conditiona) upon continued empioyment
at the vesting date. There are no performanee targels

The exercise price of aII outstanding options awarded under the MTIP at 3 May 2022 is 0.005p and the weighted
average rémaining contractual life is 0.43 years. _ :

‘ Share price at Exbeded vasting At the end of the

) Award datez. : ©  award date : year
. Number
05-Aug-21 .. ‘ ; 911.5p 05-Nov-22 . 2,282
Total - , ‘ 2,282

\

The wélghted average exercise price of all LTIP. awards is 0.005p.

Fmancla| instruments

Accounting classifications and falr vatues :
The table below sets out the dlassification of each class of financial assets and liabilities and their falr values. The
Company considers the carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities to be a reasanable approximation of falr
value and represents the Company’s maximum credit exposure as at the Statement of Financial Position date.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

As at 31 May 2022

Financial assets: : .

Cash and cash squivalents

Financial assets pledged as collateral

Financial investments

Trade recelvables - amounts due /from

brokers
Trade recelvables - amounts due from

clients
Trade receivables - own funds in client

money .
Other receivables

Financial lfabilities:

Trade payab!es - client funds held on
balance sheet

Trade payables - amounts due to
brokers

Trade payables - amounts due to
clients

.Trade payables — other trade payables
- Borowings

Other Payablss - amaounts due to other
group companies

Other Payables - accruals

for the year enided 31 May 2022

Note

16
16

- 13

13
13
15

18
18

18

18

17

19
19

~ Accounting classifications and fair values (Contmued)

Total

FyrpL ~ Amortsed FVOC)  camying vae
gmount

fm £m " £m . Em Em

- 860.7 - 860.7 860.7

. ; 60.4 60.4 60.4

- 450 290.7 335.7 335.7
(160.5) 494.5 . 334.0 334.0
. 1.0 - 10 1.0

- 26.8 . 268 269
230.2 (1.9) . 228.3 228.3
69.7 1,426.1 351.1 18469 18469
25.5 (128.3) - (102.8)  (102.8)
(0.8) (27.0) ; (27.8) - (27.8)
- (7.4) - (7.4) (7.4)

- ©.2) - (©.2) ©0.2)
2056  (1.613.6) - (1.3180) (1.318.0)
- 80y - ®0) . (80)
3203 (1.784.5) - (14642) (1,464.2)
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26.  Financlal instruments (Continued)
Accounting classifications and fair values (Continued)

) FVOCI - Total :
FVTPL Amom::; ) -canrying  Fair value
amount )
As at 31 May 2021 .  Note £m fm  fm £m £m
Financlal assets: ‘
L . .
Cash and cash equivalents ) - 402.7 - q02.7 402.7
Financial assets pledged as collateral 16 - - - 871 - 871 87.1
- Financial investments f - 16 - - 255.0 255.0 255.0 .
: Ir’g::r; ecelvables - amounts due (to)from  * 45 17.4 376.8 . 3942 394.2
Trade receivables - own funds in client, - o . -
oy ‘ 13 14 : 1.4 1.4
Trade receivables - amounts due from 13 . 279 - 279 ° 27.9
cllents . o : .
Other receivables ) ) 15 54 142 - 196 19.6
‘228 823.0 342.1 1,187.9 1,187.9
" Financlal liabillties:
Trade payables - client funds held on n ' i . »
hondo payans 18 9.1 (8.4 {69.3) (69.3)
Trade payables - amounts due to dients 18 - 0.2) .- (0.2) (0.2)
Trade payables - other trade payables 18 - . - (0.3) . (0.3) ' (0.3)
Borrowings. : ' 17, C - (98.8) - - (988) - (98.8)
Other Payables - amounts due to other . ' : c o
group compantes 19 1124 (741.8) (620.4)  (620.4)
Other Payables - accruals . 19 - - (1.3) - (11.3) (11.3)

1215 (930.8) (809.3)  (809.3)
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- Financial instruments (Continued)
* Financlal instrument valuation hierarchy
The hierarchy of the Company'’s financial instruments carried. at fair value is as follows: .

Total fair

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
As at 31 May 2022 ' £m £m £m Em
Financial assets:
Trade receivables - smounts due from/(to) brokers ~ * 9.4 (169.9) - (160.5)
Financial assets pledged as collateral 60.4 - - 60.4
Financial Investments . 290.7 - - 290.7
Other receivables — amounts due from Group 49.4 180.8 . 230.2
companies ¢ . ' o ’
409.9 10.9 - '420.8
Financlal liabllities:
Trade payables — amount due to brokers C . (0.8) . (0.8)
Trade payables - cllent fung!s held on balance shest 0.3 25.2 = 255
Other payablss - amounts due to Group companies 85.0 210.6 . 205.6
85.3 235.0 - 320.3
. Total fair
Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
As at 31 May 2021 , £m Em E £m
Financlal assets:
Trade receivables - amounts due from/(to) brokers 0.6 16.8 - 174
Financial assets pledged as collateral 87.1 - - - 871
Finandial investments o 255.0 . - 255.0
Other receivables - amounts due from Group 54 . B 5.4
companies > ) -4
348.9 16.8 - 384.9
Financial liabilities:
. - : - 9.1 - 9.1
Trade payables - client funds held.on balance sheet :
Other payables - amounts due to Group companies 112.4 - - 1124
1124 9.1 -

1215
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H
Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy levels 1 to 3 are based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 assets are valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments. This
category includes the Company's open exchange-traded hedging positions. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Company is the period end bid price.

Level 2 assets are valued using techniques where a price is derived based significantly on observable market data.
For example, where an active market for an Identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Company to Its
clients or used by the Company to hedge ‘its.market risk does not exist. This category includes the Company's open
non- exchange—traded hedging positions, which comprise shares, foreign currency and foreign curmrency options. The
fair values used in the valuation of these preducts are sometimas brokered values and may occur after the close of a
market but before the measurement date. The offects of discounting ara generally Insignificant for these Level 2

financial instruments.

Level 3 assets are valued using !echnlques that moorporate information othsr lhan observable market data that is
significant to the overall valuation,

There have been no changes to the fair value hierarchy or the valuation techniques for any of Ihe Company s ﬁnanclal
Instruments held at fair value in the year (31 May 2021: none). There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
falr value measurements, and no transfers into or out of Leve! 3 fair value measurements for years ended 31 May 2022
and 31 May 2021.

Fair value of ﬂnanclal assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The Company's financial instruments not carried at fair value are all valuéd at Level 2. Tha falr vaiue of the financial
assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost approximate their carrylng amount.

. items of income, expense, gains or losses

All of the Company’s gains and losses -arising from.financial assets and liabilities classnﬁed as fair value through the
profit and loss are included in net trading revenue for the year ended 31 May 2022 and 31-May 2021.
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recognised financial liabitities setoffin  liabilities presented
. assets . the balance sheet .in the balance sheet
As at 31 May 2022  fm *Em £m
Financial assets e S
Trade receivables — amounts due fmm/(to) 1,071.9, (737.9) 334.0
brokers - : L.
Other receivables -'amounts due from . 2424 (196.8) 45.6
group companies . ) )
Flnancial liabilities- ) )
Trade payables - client funds held on , 25.5 (128.3) < (102.8)
balance sheet .
Trade Payables - due'to brokers 67.5 (95.3) . (27.8),
Other payables - amounts due froml(to) : . ‘N2 : .
Group companias . 314:2 (1,333:8) (14.019.6)
) 1.721.5 (2,492.1) (770.8)
As at 31 May 2021 - ) ) £m £m £m
" Financial assets ) . . .
Trade receivables — amounts due from/(to) ’ 923.6 (529.4). 3942 -
brokers . : . B
. Other receivables - amounts due from 22.0. (3.5) 18.5
group companies . ° .
Financial liabliities . . :
> Trade payables - - ¢lient funds heidon . 9.1 (78.4) - {69.3)
balance shest B ’ : :
Other payables amounts due fmm/(to) N .
Group companies . 112.4 . (741.2) (628.8)
1.067.1. (1.352.5) . (285.4)

IG Markets lelted

9 PO T I s A

for the year ended 31 May 2022
Financial instruments (continued) ’

Offsetting financial assets and liabllitles

Notes to the Financial Statements

The following financial assets and liabilities have been offset on the Company’s Statement of Finandial Position and

are subject to enforceable netting agreaments

.'Gross amounts of

Gross amounts of | Net.amounts of
recognised financial  financial assets and

3

Trade receivables — amounts due from/(to) brokers, Trade payables - client funds held on balance shest and Other
receivables/payables- amounts due from/{to) Group companies have been prasented gross to reflect the impact of
offsatting. The Company is entitled to offset amounts dua from/(to) certain brokers on a broker account level, by
currency. The Company is entitled to-offset unrealised client positions with client funds held at a client acocount level.
The Company is also entitied to offset operational receivables with payables from other group companies on an entity-
by-entity basis. Collateral at brokers represent UK Govemment securities listed with brokers to meet the brokers .
requirements. Cllent funds represents balances with clients where the cash held on balante sheet and the valuation of
open derivatlve positions result in an amount due to clients. . .

12




IG Markets Limited

27.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022 \

/

Financlal risk management

S

Financial risks-arising from financia) mslruments are analysed into market, cradit, concentration and Ilquldlty risks. The

managemem section of the Group Annual Report.

" Market rlsk

Market risk disclosures are analysed into the following categorles:
o Nen trading interest rate and

" Company follows the Group risk management framework in managing its risks, and detaﬂs this is discussed in the risk

o' Pdce and foreign currency risk, which is further analysed between the impact on financial investments held
atfairvalue through other comprehensive income and the impact an the Company's net trading book position.
The Company's foreign currency exposure on its financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies

other than the reporting currency is included in the trading book.

Where applicable the quantified maximum exposures for the Company from each risk category are disclosed below.

Non-trading interast rate risk

The Company has interest rate risk relating to fi nanaal Instruments on its Statement of Financial Position not held at

fair value through profit or loss. These exposures are not hedged.

The mteres! rate nsk proﬁle of the Company's financial assels and liabilities at each year-end was as follows:

Within 1 year Between 2 and S 5+ years
. : - years .
. 31May 31May 31May 31May 31May 31May
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£€m £m £m- £m £m £m’
Fixed rate: .
Financiat assets pledged 31 260 253 611 - -
as collateral
Financlal Investments - 2009 1274 1348 1276 - -
Other Receivables - - . -
amounts dus from other - - 181.7 - .
group companies .
Other Payables - amounts .
due to other group - - ) - . - (298.3) -
companies
Floating rate:
‘Cash and cash 860.7- 4027 - . - - B
equivalents
. Tradereceivables-due . 3340 3942 _ - -
- from brokers C : -
. Trade receivables - Own 26.8 279 L - -
funds in client money | )
Borrdwlngs - - - - (98.8) - -
. Other Payables - ' ' .
amounts dus to other ' (36.0) {20.6) . - . - .

group companies ..

Total

31 May 31 May

2022 2021
£m £m
60.4 87.1

3357 '255.0

181.7 -

(298.3) . -

860.7  402.7
3340 3942
268 279

- (98.8)
(36.0) . (20.5)

1.421.5 957.6 3418 899 (298.3). -

1,465.0 10475
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27.  Financlal risk management (continued)
Non-trading Interest rata risk sensitivity analysis - fixed rate

Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed untll the matunty of the instrument. The level of future fixed
interest receivable would be simfilar to that received in the year and is considered immaterial to the Company's profit for

the year. ]
ANon-tradmg lntomst rate rlsk sensitivity analysls ﬂoatlng rate
: Interest on ﬁnanaal instruments classified as floating rate is re-priced at intervals of less than one year. Trade receivables '
and payables include client and broker balances upon which-interest is paid or received based upon market rates.
Interest rate sensitivity has been performed on floating rate financlal instruments by considering the impact of a 1%
decrease in interest rates on financla! assets and finandal fiabilities. The impact of such a movement on the Company’s
profit before tax is below. o

L4

* Year ended Year ended
o ‘31 May 2022 . 31 May 2021
: “lmpact: £m . £m
A (Decrease)increase in profit before tax: '
. Cash and cash equivalents A K (8.6) ) ) -(4.0)
Trade receivables — amounts due from brokers ‘ . (0.8) (1 1)
Trade receivables ~ own funds in client money . ) . (0.3) . (0.3)
Tradt_)rpa‘yables - dua to brokers 0.3 ) .
Borrowings ' ' - ' 0.1
Olher payables - . (0.4) -
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Financial risk management (continued)

Price risk

The Company is exposed to invastment securitles price risk becausae financial investments and financlal assets pledged
as coflateral held by the Company and classified on the Company’s Statemént of Financial Pasition as fair value through
other comprehensive Income are valued based on closing market prices published by the UK Debt Management Office.
These exposuras are not hedged.

The table below summarises the impact of decreases in the value of financial investments on the Group's other
comprehensive incoms. The analysis is based -on the assumption that the yleld curve of financial investments moved

-upwards by 1% with all other vanables held constant

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

May 2022 May 2021.

Impact: : o " Em - £m
Decrease In FVOCI reserve (equity) . (2.9) (3.'1‘)

The Company is also exposed to priée and foreign currency risk in relation to its net tréding book position. The Company
accapts soma resldual market risk to facilitate instant exscution of client trades but does not take proprietary positions for

-the purposes of speculative gain. The Company manages the market risk it faces in providing its services to clients by
" -interalising client flow (allowing individual client trades to offsét one another) and hedging when the residual exposures

reach pre-defined limits. The Company follows the Group's risk management framework as set-out In the Group Annual
Report. -

The Company's market risk policy includes board approved notional market risk limits (KRIs) which set out the Company's
appetite and the extent to which the Company Is wiliing to be exposed to this residual market risk. Product market risk
fimits controt the maximum (long or short) residual exposure the Company can hold before hedging extemnally. Predefined
limits are set and regularly reviewed in accordance with a limits framework which referances client trading volumes, market
liquidity, volatility and expected shortfall resuits for each undertying market.

Alongside these notional limits the Company employs a range of risk measurement techniques including Value at Risk
(VaR), Expected Shortfall and Stress-Testing models which are used to quantify potential markaet risk and ciient credit risk
losses against all products. These measures cover all products offered to clients are monitored on an hourly basis, with
breaches mvestlgated and reported to the Chief Risk Officer and senior stakeholders in each hne of defenoe on a daily
basis. .

These measures quantlfy the potential uncertainty In re!_aﬂon to the Company's cunent .exposure by estimating the
potential impact of a negative change In the value of each undedying financial market the Company is exposed to. The
VaR model uses a 9% confidence interval over one day and one year’s historical price data for all markets as inputs to
determine the risk factors to apply to the portfolio exposures. VaR has limitations as it is reliant on historical data only and
estimates potential future losses on this basis. Additionally, VaR does not quantify the potential losses outside of the 99%
confidence leve! - the tail risk. To overcome these limitations the Company also measures and monitors Expected Shortfall
and Stress Testing results alongside VaR results as part of its overall risk management strategy. Expected Shortfall

* measures IG's expacted losses outside of the 99% confidence level (average losses in the 1% tail), whilst Stress Testing

models potential losses in extreme but plausible events. Stress Testing covers a range of scenarios including future known
economic and political events, market or region-spacific scenarios and potential macro systemic shocks which references
the 20-year price retums for all markets at ths 99.9th percentile oonﬂdence interval. The Companys end of day market
risk.VaR for the year Is shown in the table betow:

Yearended ~  Year ended

31 May 2022 31 May 2021

£m £m

 Market risk as at 31 May A . 50 - © 53
Average market risk (daily) ' 36 .98
-Maximum market risk (daily) ’ . ’ 13.1 25.5

Minimum market risk (dally) : , . © 13 T 28

Forelgn currency risk

The Company faces foreign currency exposures on financial assets and ligbilities denominated in cunencies other than
its functional currancy. The Company hedges its own foreign currency exposures, and that of other Group companiss,
with third party brokers. In the normal course of business, the Company hedges these exposures along wlth its trading
book posntlons . ’
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27. Financial risk managsment (continued)

Associated with the tastytrade, Inc acquisition by |G Group Holdings pic referred to In note 17, the Company entered into
a foreign exchange contract to hedge the $300 million exposure arlsing from the cash cons!deration due to be pald by
another Group company upon completion of the transaction. In the year ended 31 May 2022, the Company recognised a
£5.8 milllon realised foreign exchange loss (31 May 2021:'£7.9 million unmalised foreign exchange loss) in net’ trading
revenue as a result of this hedge.

_ Credit risk
The pnnupal sources of credit risk to the Company’s business ars.from financiaf Institutions, lndivfdual cllents and other
Group companies.

Amounts due from financial inslilutions, which are stated net of an expected credit loss of £0.1m (31 May 2021: £nil), are
all less than 30 days dua. Amounts due from cllents, which are stated net of an expected credit loss of £3.8 million at 31
May 2021 (31 May 2021: £4.2 million), lnclude both amounts less than and greater than 30 days past due.

The analysis in the following table shows credit exposures by credit rating:

. ‘ Trade " Trade Trade Other
Cashandcash  recelvables ~ recelvables - 'eceivables - receivables -
equivalents amounts due amounts due own funds in amounts due
: from brokers from clients . cllentmoney  from other group
N companies
31 31 .31 31 31 ] 31 31 31 31

© May May  May May ' May May May May May May
- -2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 22022 2021 2022 2021

£m Em  £m £mi £m £m £m fm-  Em £m

Credit rating:

AA to AA- 3608 1295 - 82 . -z 2.1 . .
A+ to A- 489.5 2721 2964 3768 - - 24.9 245 - -
B8BB+ to BBB- 10.4 11 328 - - . - 02 13 - -
Unrated. - - - 48 9.2 1.0 1.4 - - 2273 185
Total'carrylng .
amount 860.7 402.7J 3340 3942 10. 14. 268 279 2273 18.5

. . 5 5
. 3
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27. . Financlal risk mahagement {continued)
_ Credit risk (contl'nue@). '
Loss allowance )
Belowis a racondillation of the otal loss allowance:

31 May 2022 31 May 2021

“€m A £m
. Balance at 1 June ) : 4.2 ' " 38
- Loss allowances for the year: . ) o ‘ .
" -gross chargeforthéy'ear - ’ N 1.3 - 29
- recoveries . ' I S (15 @1
- impact of foreign exchange - ' . - {0.1)-
Debts written off - o (0.2) 03)

- Balance at 31 May : . 38 , 42

The loss allowance has been calculated in aocordaﬁce with the Company's expectéd credit loss model.

The fol!owmg table provides an overview of the Company's credit risk by Stage and the associated loss allowance. The
financial instruments that are assessed in accordance with the simplified approach are trade recelvables (excludlng :
derivative amounts due from brokers) and other receivables.

As at 31 May 2022 Sta.gn 1 Stage2 . - . Stage3
. ) 12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL . Total

. Credit grade: . s £m £m : £€m Em .
. Investment grade : 47784 - . - 1774.4
Non-Investment grade i 233.7 R 38 237.5
Gross camying amount L 20081 - 3.8 20119
Loss allowance : . . . - {3.8) - (3.8)
Totai carrying amount - o . 2,008.1 - R 2,008.1
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27, Financial risk management (c;onﬂbued) .

Credit risk (continued) - -
Stags 1 Stage 2° Stage 3
: 124non1h ' . Llfgtime Lifetime
Asat 31 May 2021 - ECL ECL ECL Total
Credit grade: ‘ A £m £m £m £m
Investment grade - 11308 - - 1,130.8
" Non-investment grade . 285 o - 42 327
Gross camying amount, ‘ 1,168.3 - 42 114725
Loss allowance . . @2 (4.2)
Total carrying amount ' 1,168.3, . - 1,168.3

The comparatives for 31 May 2021 have béen re-presented to spilt out amount previously prevented as being dassified
within the simplified qpproach qolumn into the relevant staging. .
Concentration risk

The Company's largest credit exposure to any one individual broker at 31 May 2022 was £55.7 million (A+ rated) (31 May
2021: £64.2 mlilion (A+ rated)). The Company’s largest credit exposure to any bank at 31 May 2022 was £306.3 million
(AA- rated) (31 May 2021: £112.5 million (A+ rated)).

The Company has no significant credit exposure to any one particular client or group of connected clients.
Thls risk is managed at a Group leve! and detalls are In the risk management section of the Group Annual Report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Financlal risk managsment (contmued)
qumdlty risk :

- Liquidity risk is the risk that the company does not have sufficient cash or collateral to make payments to-its counterparties

as they fall due. The Company manages its liquidity risk in accordance with the Group’s liquidity risk management policy
and this i set out in the risk management sectlon of the Gmup Annual Report.

Maturitles of financial liabtlities :
The tables below outline the Company's financial liabilities into relevant matumy categories based on their contractual
maturitles. The amounts dlsclosed below are the contractual undiscounted cash ﬂows

_ 31 May 2022 A
. . ) . Carrying
Within 1 year Between 2 "Over § years Total’ amount of
and S years e
e liability
£m £m . £m £m £m
Other payables — o _
" amounts dus to other (1,028.1) . . (37.6) (304.7) © (1.3704). - (1,318.0)
- group companies . . .
Other payables — ] " : i '
il % 4 . B (8.0) . (8.0) (8.0)
Trade payables {138.2) . .- (138.2) (138.2)
Total ) (1.174.3) (37.6) '(304.7) (1,516.6) {1,464.2)
31 May 2021
) Carrying
Within 1 year - aE:“SNe:; rg Over 5 years Total amount of
24 ‘ - liability
o ‘ £m £m £m : £m ;. Em
Lease liabilities . ' 0.2) - - . (0.2) (0.2)
Other payables — , ' .
amounts due to other (640.7) - ) - (640.7) (640.7)
group companies . ) .
Other payables - . ' . ; :
accruals (11.3) - _ - (11.3) (11.3)
Trade payables (6'9_.5) - . - (69.5) (69.5)
Borrowings : (2.0) (102.4) . (104.4) "(98.8)
Total . (1237)  (1024) ‘ - (826.1) (820.5)

Capital management

The Company manages its capita! resources with the ob;ecﬂva of facilitating business growth and maintaining dividend
policy, whilst complying with the regulatory requirements imposed on the Company.,

" The regulatory capital resources of the Company Is a-:measure of equity, adjusted for goodwlll ‘and lntanglble assets,’

deferred tax assets, declared dividends and prudent valuation, which at 31 May 2022 totalled £261.7 million (31 May 2021
£410.1 million).

The Company operates a momtodng framework over the capital resources and minimum capital requ:rements datly,
calculating the market and credit risk requirements arising from exposure at the end of sach day and include intemal
warning indicators as part of the Group's Board Risk Dashboard. . - :

Until 31 December 2021, the Company was subject to CRD IV regulatlons The Company was required to undertake a
Pillar 2 Intemal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) at least annually, which involved an assessment of capltal
requirements through a serles of -stress-testing scenarios against the financlal projections. From 1 January 2022, the ..
Company Is sublect to the Investment Firm Prudential Regime (IFPR), which chariges the basis of calculation .of the.
Company's regulatory capital and replaces the ICAAP with an Intemal Capital and Risk ‘Assessment (ICARA) prepared
under the requirements of the MlFIDPRU ) )
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' Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Company met all regulatory capital requlrements thnoughout the year ended 31 May 2022 and 31 May 2021. Other
than regulatory capital requirements, the Company is not required to comply with any third party financial covenants.
Prior to the debt refinancing perfformed in November 2021, Including for the year ended 31 May 2021, the Company was
required to comply with a third party financial covenants covering a maximum leverage ratio and net debt to equity.

Subsequent events

* There have been no subsequent events since 31 May 2022.
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